

# ACCOUNTING AND FINANCE LEVEL - IV

# Based on November 2023 curriculum V – II



Unit Title: Apply Principles of Professional Practice to Work in the Financial Services

**Industry** 

Module Code: LSA ACF4 03 1123

Prepared by: Ministry of Labor and Skills

November, 2023 Addis Ababa, Ethiopia

1   P a g e	Ministry of Labor	Apply Principles of Professional Practice to Work in	Version-1
	and Skills	the Financial Services Industry	November
	Author/Copyright		2023



# Acknowledgment

**Ministry of Labour and Skills** wish to extend thanks and appreciation to the many representatives of TVET instructors and respective industry experts who donated their time and expertise to the development of this Teaching, Training and Learning Materials (TTLM).



# **Table of Contents**

Acronym	4
Introduction to the Module	5
UNIT 1: Basics of Industry	6
1.1.Sectors of financial service industries.	7
1.2.Participants of financial industry	9
1.3.Factors impacting financial service industry	11
1.4.Financial services industry guidelines, procedures and legislation	13
1.5.Clarifying and refining own work practice	14
1.6.Ethical approach to workplace practice	16
Self check 1	19
Unit Two: Managing information	22
2.1. Collecting Information	23
2.2. Analyzing information	24
2.3. Presenting information	26
Self check 2	28
Unit Three: Work team Activities	30
3.1.Feedback to team members	31
3.2.Encouraging team members	31
3.3.Own contribution to work team	33
Fig.3.1. Team work	34
Self Check 3	36
Unit Four: Work Planning	37
4.1. Tasks and conditions	38
4.2. Planning work	39
4.3. Making contributions to organization planning process	42
4.4. Changes in technology and work organization	44
Self check 4	47
Unit Five: Personal competency Development	49
5.1.Professional development needs and goals	50
5.2.Competency, authorization and licensingrequirements	52
5.3.Professional development opportunities	53
Self check 5	56
REFERENCES	58

3   P a g e	Ministry of Labor	Apply Principles of Professional Practice to Work in	Version-1
	and Skills	the Financial Services Industry	November
	Author/Copyright		2023



# Acronym

S&L SAVING AND LOAN

IPO INTIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

WB WORLD BANK

IMF INTERNATIOAL MONETARY FUND

NBE NATIONAL BANK OF ETHIOPIA

TBL TRIPLE BOTTOM LIE

GAAP GENERAL ACCEPTE ACCOUTING PRINCIPLR

IRFS INTERNATIONAL REPORT FINANCIAL STANDARD

PPP PROFIT. PEOPLE, PLANET



#### **Introduction to the Module**

In accounting and finance field, Applying Principles of Professional Practice to Work in the Financial Services Industry is very important for the overall organizational operation. It helps to know Basics of financial services industry, Sustainability of financial services industry, Managing information, work team activities, Planning work and personal competency

This module is designed to meet the industry requirement under the Accounting and finance occupational standard, particularly for the unit of competency: Applying Principles of Professional Practice to Work in the Financial Services Industry.

#### This module covers the units:

- Basics of financial service industry.
- Managing information
- work team activities
- work Planning
- Personal competency Development

## **Learning objectives of the Module:**

- Identify the scope, sectors and responsibilities of the industry.
- Identify and apply financial services industry guidelines, procedures and legislation
- Identify sustainability issues for the financial services industry
- Manage information
- Facilitate work team activities
- Plan work to be completed
- Develop and maintain personal competency



# **UNIT 1: Basics of Industry**

This learning guide is developed to provide you the necessary information regarding thefollowing content coverage and topics:

- Sectors of financial service industries
- Participants of financial industry
- Factors impacting financial service industry
- financial services industry guidelines, procedures and legislation
- Clarifying and refining own work practice
- Ethical approach to workplace practice

This guide will also assist you to attain the learning outcomes stated in the cover page. Specifically, upon completion of this learning guide, you will be able to:

- Identifying the *main sectors* of the financial services industry and their interrelationship
- Identifying the roles and responsibilities of participants
- Identifying *external forces* impacting the financial services industry
- Apply financial services industry guidelines, procedures and legislation
- Clarify and refine own work practice
- Use ethical approach to workplace practice and decisions



#### 1.1. Sectors of financial service industries

The financial services industry encompasses various sectors that provide a wide range of financial products and services to individuals, businesses, and governments. Here are key sectors within the financial service industry:

#### • Banking Sector:

- ➤ Retail Banking: Services for individual customers, including savings and checking accounts, loans, mortgages, and credit cards.
- ➤ Commercial Banking: Services tailored for businesses, such as business loans, treasury services, and business accounts.
- ➤ Investment Banking: Involves capital raising, mergers and acquisitions, and financial advisory services for corporations and governments.

#### • Insurance Sector:

- Life Insurance: Provides coverage for the policyholder's life, paying benefits to beneficiaries upon death.
- ➤ Property and Casualty Insurance: Covers property damage and liability for individuals and businesses.
- ➤ Health Insurance: Covers medical expenses and health-related costs.
- ➤ Reinsurance: Insurance for insurance companies, spreading risk among multiple insurers.

#### • Investment Sector:

- ➤ Asset Management: Manages investment portfolios for individuals, institutions, and funds.
- ➤ Hedge Funds: Investment funds that use various strategies to generate high returns for investors.
- Private Equity: Invests in private companies, often involved in buyouts or venture capital.
- ➤ Mutual Funds: Pooled funds managed by investment professionals, accessible to individual investors.

#### • Capital Markets:

- > Stock Markets: Facilitate the buying and selling of stocks (equity securities).
- ➤ Bond Markets: Deal with the issuance and trading of debt securities.
- > Derivatives Markets: Involve financial contracts whose value is derived from an

7   P a g e	Ministry of Labor	Apply Principles of Professional Practice to Work in	Version-1
	and Skills Author/Copyright	the Financial Services Industry	November 2023



underlying asset.

- Financial Technology (Fintech):
  - ➤ Online Banking: Digital platforms offering banking services.
  - ➤ Payment Services: Online payment processors, digital wallets, and mobile payment apps.
  - ➤ Blockchain and Cryptocurrencies: Technologies like blockchain and cryptocurrencies such as Bitcoin and Ethereum.
  - ➤ Robo-Advisors: Automated platforms providing investment advice.

#### • Real Estate Finance:

- ➤ Mortgage Lending: Provides loans for purchasing real estate.
- ➤ Real Estate Investment Trusts (REITs): Companies that own, operate, or finance income-generating real estate.
- Government and Public Finance:
  - ➤ Public Finance: Involves managing government revenue, expenditures, and debt.
  - ➤ Central Banking: Oversight of a country's money supply, interest rates, and monetary policy.

#### • Consumer Finance:

- ➤ Credit Unions: Member-owned financial cooperatives providing banking services.
- ➤ Payday Lending: Short-term loans with high-interest rates, often targeting consumers with poor credit.



Figure 1.1 financial sectors

8   P a g e	Ministry of Labor	Apply Principles of Professional Practice to Work in	Version-1
	and Skills	the Financial Services Industry	November
	Author/Copyright		2023



These sectors are interconnected, and many financial institutions operate across multiple sectors, providing a comprehensive range of services to meet diverse financial needs. Additionally, regulatory bodies oversee and regulate these sectors to ensure stability and protect consumers.

### 1.2. Participants of financial industry

The financial industry consists of various participants, each with specific roles and responsibilities. Here's an overview of key participants and their functions:

Table 1. 1 participants of financial industries and their roles and responsibility

Financial industry	Roles and responsibility
participants	
Banks	Accepting deposits from individuals and businesses.
	• Providing loans and credit services.
	• Facilitating electronic funds transfers.
	• Offering financial products such as savings accounts, checking
	accounts, and loans.
Insurance	Assessing and underwriting risks.
Companies	• Issuing insurance policies to cover individuals and entities
	against specific risks.
	• Collecting premiums from policyholders.
	• Settling claims and providing financial compensation in case of
	covered events.
Investment Banks	• Assisting companies in raising capital through the issuance of
	stocks and bonds.
	• Providing advisory services for mergers and acquisitions
	(M&A).
	<ul> <li>Managing and underwriting securities offerings.</li> </ul>
	• Conducting research on financial markets and investment
Companies	<ul> <li>Issuing insurance policies to cover individuals and entite against specific risks.</li> <li>Collecting premiums from policyholders.</li> <li>Settling claims and providing financial compensation in case covered events.</li> <li>Assisting companies in raising capital through the issuance stocks and bonds.</li> <li>Providing advisory services for mergers and acquisition (M&amp;A).</li> <li>Managing and underwriting securities offerings.</li> <li>Conducting research on financial markets and investments.</li> </ul>

9   P a g e	Ministry of Labor	Apply Principles of Professional Practice to Work in	Version-I
	and Skills	the Financial Services Industry	November
	Author/Copyright		2023



	opportunities.
Asset	Managing investment portfolios on behalf of clients.
Management	Offering mutual funds, exchange-traded funds (ETFs), and other
Firms	investment products.
	Conducting market research and analysis.
	Providing financial advisory and wealth management services.
Hedge Funds	Actively managing pooled funds using various investment
	strategies.
	Seeking to generate high returns for investors.
	Engaging in risk management and hedging strategies.
	Typically catering to accredited investors and institutions.
Stock Exchanges	Facilitating the buying and selling of stocks and other securities.
	Ensuring transparency and efficiency in trading.
	Providing a platform for price discovery.
	• Enforcing rules and regulations to maintain fair and orderly
	markets.
Central Banks	Formulating and implementing monetary policy to control
	money supply and interest rates.
	Issuing and managing the country's currency.
	Acting as a lender of last resort to financial institutions.
	Overseeing and regulating the banking system to ensure
	stability.
Regulatory	Overseeing and enforcing financial regulations.
Authorities	Protecting investors and consumers.
	Ensuring fair and transparent markets.
	Managing systemic risks and maintaining financial stability.
Financial	Providing digital banking services.
Technology	Offering online payment solutions, mobile wallets, and peer-to-
(Fintech)	peer lending.
Companies	Developing and implementing financial software and
	applications.

10   P a g e	Ministry of Labor	Apply Principles of Professional Practice to Work in	Version-1
	and Skills	the Financial Services Industry	November
	Author/Copyright		2023



	• Innovating in areas such as blockchain and cryptocurrency.
Real Estate	Providing mortgage loans for real estate purchases.
Finance	• Managing real estate investment trusts (REITs).
Institutions	• Engaging in real estate development and financing.
Consumers and	• Using financial services for personal banking, investing, and
Investors	insurance needs.
	<ul> <li>Making investment decisions in stocks, bonds, and other securities.</li> </ul>
	• Contributing to the overall demand for financial products and
	services.

Understanding the roles and responsibilities of these financial industry participants is crucial for maintaining a well-functioning and stable financial system. Regulators play a vital role in overseeing these participants to ensure compliance with laws and regulations, promoting fair practices, and safeguarding the interests of the public.

## 1.3. Factors impacting financial service industry

The financial services industry is influenced by a variety of internal and external factors that shape its operations, growth, and overall stability. Here are key internal and external factors impacting the financial services industry:

#### A. Internal Factors

- Management and Leadership: The effectiveness of leadership and management within financial institutions influences strategic decisions, risk management, and overall organizational performance.
- Financial Health of Institutions: The financial stability and health of individual institutions, including banks and insurance companies, impact their ability to provide services, withstand economic downturns, and meet regulatory requirements.
- Technological Capabilities: The level of technological adoption and innovation within financial institutions affects efficiency, customer experience, and the ability to adapt to changing market dynamics.

11   Page	Ministry of Labor	Apply Principles of Professional Practice to Work in	Version-1
	and Skills Author/Copyright	the Financial Services Industry	November 2023



- Risk Management Practices: The effectiveness of risk management strategies and practices within financial institutions is crucial for maintaining stability and protecting against financial losses.
- Regulatory Compliance: Adherence to internal policies and external regulations is essential for financial institutions to avoid legal issues, regulatory fines, and reputational damage.
- Human Resources: The skills, expertise, and productivity of the workforce contribute to the overall effectiveness of financial institutions.
- Marketing and Branding: Effective marketing and branding strategies influence customer acquisition, retention, and the overall perception of financial institutions in the market.
- Financial Products and Services: The design, pricing, and competitiveness of financial products and services offered by institutions impact their market position and customer satisfaction.

#### B. External Factors

- Economic Conditions: The overall economic environment, including interest rates, inflation, and GDP growth, significantly impacts the financial services industry.
- Market Competition: Intense competition among financial institutions affects pricing, innovation, and customer service levels.
- Technological Advances: Rapid technological changes, including developments in fintech, blockchain, and artificial intelligence, reshape how financial services are delivered and consumed.
- Regulatory Changes: Shifts in regulatory frameworks and compliance requirements can impact the operations, costs, and strategic decisions of financial institutions.
- Global Events and Geopolitics: Global events, geopolitical tensions, and economic developments in major economies can have ripple effects on financial markets and institutions worldwide.
- Customer Behavior and Expectations: Changes in customer preferences, behaviors, and expectations, often influenced by societal trends and demographic shifts, drive the demand for new financial products and services.
- Cybersecurity Threats: The increasing frequency and sophistication of cyber

12   P a g e	Ministry of Labor	Apply Principles of Professional Practice to Work in	Version-1
	and Skills Author/Copyright	the Financial Services Industry	November 2023



threats pose risks to the security of financial institutions and the privacy of customer data.

 Social and Cultural Factors: Cultural and social trends influence financial decisions, preferences, and the acceptance of new financial technologies and services.

Understanding and effectively managing these internal and external factors is crucial for financial institutions to navigate challenges, seize opportunities, and maintain resilience in a dynamic and interconnected financial landscape.

# 1.4. Financial services industry guidelines, procedures and legislation

The financial services industry is highly regulated to ensure stability, protect consumers, and maintain the integrity of financial markets. The guidelines, procedures, and legislation governing this industry can vary significantly by country and region. Below are general categories and examples of guidelines, procedures, and legislation that are commonly found in the financial services sector:

#### A. Regulatory Authorities:

- Legislation: Laws that establish and empower regulatory bodies overseeing the financial services industry. For example, in the United States, the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934 established the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC).
- Guidelines and Procedures: Regulatory agencies often publish guidelines and procedures to provide detailed instructions on compliance with the law. For instance, the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) in the UK issues guidelines for financial institutions.

#### B. Banking Regulations:

- Legislation: Laws that govern the establishment and operations of banks. The Basel III framework, for example, provides international banking regulations.
- Guidelines and Procedures: Banks must adhere to guidelines and procedures related to capital adequacy, risk management, and reporting. The Dodd-Frank Act in the U.S. introduced various guidelines for banks.

#### C. Securities Regulations:

• Legislation: Laws regulating the issuance and trading of securities. In the U.S., the

13   P a g e	Ministry of Labor	Apply Principles of Professional Practice to Work in	Version-1
	and Skills	the Financial Services Industry	November
	Author/Copyright		2023



Securities Act of 1933 and the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 are key pieces of legislation.

- Guidelines and Procedures: Regulators issue guidelines on securities registration, disclosure, and trading practices.
- D. Insurance Regulations:
- Legislation: Laws governing the insurance industry. In the European Union, Solvency II is a regulatory framework for insurance and reinsurance.
- Guidelines and Procedures: Insurance regulators may issue guidelines on solvency requirements, risk management, and consumer protection.
- E. Anti-Money Laundering (AML) and Know Your Customer (KYC):
- Legislation: Laws designed to prevent money laundering and terrorist financing. The USA PATRIOT Act in the U.S. is an example.
- Guidelines and Procedures: Financial institutions must follow AML and KYC procedures to identify and verify the identity of their customers.
- F. Consumer Protection:
- Legislation: Laws protecting consumers in financial transactions. For example, the Consumer Financial Protection Act in the U.S.
- Guidelines and Procedures: Guidelines on fair lending practices, disclosure requirements, and handling consumer complaints.
- G. Data Protection and Privacy:
- Legislation: Laws governing the collection and use of personal data. The General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) in the European Union is a significant example.
- Guidelines and Procedures: Guidance on securing and handling customer data, including data breach response procedures.

It's important to note that the specifics will vary based on the jurisdiction and the type of financial services provided. Financial institutions are expected to stay abreast of changes in legislation, guidelines, and procedures to ensure compliance and ethical business practices. Consulting with legal and compliance professionals in the specific jurisdiction is recommended for the most accurate and up-to-date information.

## 1.5. Clarifying and refining own work practice

14   P a g e	Ministry of Labor	Apply Principles of Professional Practice to Work in	Version-1
	and Skills Author/Copyright	the Financial Services Industry	November 2023
	i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i		2023



Clarifying and refining your own work practices is a continuous process that involves reflection, self-assessment, and improvement. Here are some steps and strategies to help you clarify and refine your work practices:

#### I. Self-Reflection:

- Regularly take time to reflect on your work. Consider what has been successful and where there may be room for improvement.
- Identify your strengths and weaknesses. Acknowledge areas where you excel and areas that may require further development.
- Reflect on your goals and whether your current work practices align with achieving those goals.

#### II. Feedback:

- Seek feedback from colleagues, supervisors, or mentors. Constructive feedback can provide valuable insights into your performance and areas for improvement.
- Be open to feedback and view it as an opportunity for growth. Consider both positive and constructive feedback in refining your work practices.

#### III. Set Clear Goals:

- Define clear and achievable short-term and long-term goals. These goals will serve as benchmarks for evaluating your work practices.
- Ensure that your goals are specific, measurable, achievable, relevant, and time-bound (SMART).

#### IV. Continuous Learning:

- Stay informed about industry trends, best practices, and advancements in your field. Continuous learning can enhance your knowledge and skills.
- Attend workshops, conferences, or training sessions to expand your expertise and stay current in your profession.

#### V. Time Management:

- Assess how you manage your time and prioritize tasks. Use tools like to-do lists, calendars, or project management software to organize your work.
- Identify time-wasting activities and find ways to eliminate or minimize them.

## VI. Adaptability:

• Be adaptable to change. In a dynamic work environment, the ability to adapt and embrace change is crucial.

15   P a g e	Ministry of Labor	Apply Principles of Professional Practice to Work in	Version-1
	and Skills Author/Copyright	the Financial Services Industry	November 2023



• Learn from past experiences and be willing to modify your work practices based on new information or changing circumstances.

#### VII. Networking:

- Build professional relationships with colleagues both inside and outside your organization. Networking can provide diverse perspectives and insights.
- Collaborate with others to share knowledge and best practices.

#### VIII. Ethical Considerations:

- Ensure that your work practices align with ethical standards and values. Consider the ethical implications of your decisions and actions.
- Stay informed about any changes in regulations or industry standards that may impact your ethical responsibilities.

#### IX. Seek Professional Development:

- Identify areas for professional development and seek opportunities for training or skill-building in those areas.
- Stay connected with professional organizations that offer resources and support for your field.

#### X. Monitor and Evaluate:

- Regularly monitor your progress towards your goals. Evaluate the effectiveness of the changes you implement in your work practices.
- Adjust your strategies based on the outcomes and lessons learned from your ongoing evaluations.

By consistently engaging in self-reflection, seeking feedback, setting clear goals, and staying adaptable, you can clarify and refine your work practices to enhance your effectiveness and professional growth.

## 1.6. Ethical approach to workplace practice

Adopting an ethical approach to workplace practice is essential for maintaining integrity, fostering a positive work culture, and building trust among colleagues, clients, and stakeholders. Here are key principles and considerations for an ethical approach to workplace practice:

#### • Integrity and Honesty:

Act with integrity and be honest in all your dealings. Avoid deception,

16   P a g e	Ministry of Labor	Apply Principles of Professional Practice to Work in	Version-1
	and Skills	the Financial Services Industry	November
	Author/Copyright		2023



misrepresentation, or withholding information.

➤ Uphold a high standard of truthfulness and transparency in communication and decision-making.

#### • Respect for Others:

- > Treat all individuals with respect, regardless of their position, background, or status. Foster a workplace culture that values diversity and inclusion.
- Listen actively and consider different perspectives, acknowledging and respecting the rights and dignity of others.

#### • Fairness and Equity:

- Ensure fairness and equity in your decisions and actions. Avoid favoritism and discriminatory practices.
- ➤ Promote equal opportunities for all employees and address any disparities or biases that may exist in the workplace.

#### • Confidentiality:

- ➤ Safeguard confidential information entrusted to you. Respect the privacy of colleagues, clients, and stakeholders.
- ➤ Follow established protocols for handling sensitive information and avoid unauthorized disclosure.

#### • Conflict of Interest:

- ➤ Disclose and manage any conflicts of interest that may arise between personal interests and professional responsibilities.
- Make decisions in the best interest of the organization and its stakeholders, avoiding situations that compromise objectivity.

#### • Professional Competence:

- ➤ Maintain and enhance your professional competence through continuous learning and skill development.
- ➤ Be aware of your limitations and seek assistance or guidance when faced with tasks or situations beyond your expertise.

#### • Accountability:

- Take responsibility for your actions and decisions. Acknowledge mistakes and work towards resolving them.
- ➤ Hold yourself accountable to organizational policies, industry regulations, and

17   P a g e	Ministry of Labor	Apply Principles of Professional Practice to Work in	Version-1
	and Skills Author/Copyright	the Financial Services Industry	November 2023



ethical standards.

#### • Social Responsibility:

- ➤ Consider the broader impact of your actions on society and the environment. Strive to contribute positively to the well-being of communities.
- Advocate for and support sustainable and socially responsible practices within the organization.

#### • Whistleblowing and Reporting:

- > Encourage a culture that supports whistleblowing and reporting unethical behavior without fear of retaliation.
- Report any observed or suspected unethical conduct in accordance with established reporting mechanisms.

#### • Compliance with Laws and Regulations:

- Ensure strict adherence to applicable laws, regulations, and industry standards. Stay informed about changes in legal requirements relevant to your field.
- > Seek legal advice when needed to ensure compliance with complex regulations.

#### • Promoting a Healthy Work Environment:

- Foster a positive and healthy work environment that prioritizes employee wellbeing, safety, and work-life balance.
- Address issues of harassment, bullying, or any behavior that contributes to a toxic workplace culture promptly and appropriately.

#### • Continuous Improvement:

Commit to continuous improvement in ethical conduct. Seek feedback, learn from experiences, and adapt your practices to align with evolving ethical standards.

By embracing these ethical principles, individuals contribute to a workplace culture that values integrity, trust, and fairness, ultimately benefiting both the organization and its stakeholders. Additionally, organizations can establish and communicate a clear code of ethics to guide employees in their professional conduct.

18   P a g e	Ministry of Labor	Apply Principles of Professional Practice to Work in	Version-1
	and Skills Author/Copyright	the Financial Services Industry	November 2023



#### Self check 1

#### I. True/False Questions

- 1. Retail banking services are tailored for businesses, offering business loans, treasury services, and business accounts.
- 2. Reinsurance involves spreading risk among multiple insurers, providing insurance coverage for policyholders.
- 3. Hedge funds typically cater to the general public and provide accessible investment opportunities.
- 4. Real estate finance includes the issuance and trading of debt securities in bond markets.
- 5. Payday lending offers long-term loans with low-interest rates, targeting consumers with excellent credit.

#### **II. Multiple-Choice Questions**

- 1. Which sector of the financial services industry involves managing investment portfolios for individuals, institutions, and funds?
- A) Retail Banking

C) Real Estate Finance

B) Asset Management

- D) Investment Banking
- 2. What is the primary responsibility of central banks within the financial industry?
- A) Issuing insurance policies
- B) Overseeing stock markets
- C) Formulating and implementing monetary policy
- D) Actively managing pooled funds
- 3. Which external factor significantly impacts the financial services industry by reshaping how services are delivered and consumed?
- A) Economic Conditions

C) Technological Advances

B) Market Competition

- D) Regulatory Changes
- 4. What is a key role of regulatory authorities in the financial industry?
- A) Issuing insurance policies
- B) Ensuring fair and transparent markets
- C) Actively managing pooled funds
- D) Facilitating electronic funds transfers
- 5. Which internal factor is crucial for financial institutions to avoid legal issues,

19   P a g e	Ministry of Labor	Apply Principles of Professional Practice to Work in	Version-1
	and Skills Author/Copyright	the Financial Services Industry	November 2023



regulatory fines, and reputational damage?

- A) Human Resources
- B) Technological Capabilities
- C) Risk Management Practices
- D) Marketing and Branding

4	20   P a g e	Ministry of Labor	Apply Principles of Professional Practice to Work in	Version-1
		and Skills	the Financial Services Industry	November
		Author/Copyright		2023



## **III. Short Answer Questions**

- 1. Explain the role of investment banks in the financial industry.
- 2. Name two sectors within the financial services industry that are interconnected and often operate across multiple sectors.
- 3. Briefly describe the role of consumers and investors in the financial industry.

21   P	age N	Inistry of Labor	Apply Principles of Professional Practice to Work in	Version-1
		and Skills	the Financial Services Industry	November
	A	author/Copyright		2023



# **Unit Two: Managing information**

This unit is developed to provide you the necessary information regarding the following content coverage and topics:

- Collecting information
- Analyzing information
- Presenting information

This guide will also assist to you to attain the learning outcomes stated in the cover page.

Specifically, upon completion of this learning guide, you will be able to:

- Collect relevant information from different sources
- Analyze information
- Present information in appropriate format

22   P a g e	Ministry of Labor and Skills	Apply Principles of Professional Practice to Work in the Financial Services Industry	Version-1 November
	Author/Copyright		2023



#### 2.1. Collecting Information

Collecting financial information is a critical process for individuals, businesses, and organizations to make informed decisions, track performance, and ensure compliance. Here are steps and considerations for collecting financial information:

- Define Financial Information Needs: Clearly identify the specific financial information you need. This may include income statements, balance sheets, cash flow statements, budget details, tax records, and other relevant financial documents.
- Identify Sources of Financial Information: Determine the sources of financial data.
   This can include internal sources such as accounting records, financial statements, and management reports, as well as external sources like banks, financial institutions, and government agencies.
- Access Internal Financial Records: Gather financial data from internal records, such
  as accounting software, financial statements, invoices, receipts, and other relevant
  documents.
- Bank Statements and Transactions: Obtain and review bank statements to track income and expenses. Analyze transactions to identify patterns and discrepancies.
- Tax Records: Collect relevant tax records, including income tax returns, W-2 or 1099 forms, and other documents necessary for tax compliance.
- Budgets and Forecasts: If applicable, gather budgetary information and financial forecasts. Compare actual financial performance with the budget to identify variances.
- Financial Reports: Review financial reports such as income statements, balance sheets, and cash flow statements. These reports provide a comprehensive overview of the financial health of an entity.
- Audit and Compliance Documents: If applicable, collect audit reports and compliance documents. These may be required for regulatory purposes or to ensure adherence to industry standards.
- External Data Sources: Obtain financial information from external sources such as industry reports, economic indicators, and market trends that may impact financial

23   P a g e	Ministry of Labor	Apply Principles of Professional Practice to Work in	Version-1
	and Skills	the Financial Services Industry	November
	Author/Copyright		2023



performance.

- Credit Reports: For businesses, review credit reports to assess creditworthiness. This information is crucial for financial decision-making and risk management.
- Expense Reports: Collect detailed expense reports to understand how funds are allocated across various categories. This can assist in identifying areas for cost optimization.
- Contracts and Agreements: Examine financial details within contracts and agreements. This may include payment terms, revenue-sharing arrangements, and financial obligations.
- Financial Software and Tools: Leverage financial software and tools to streamline the collection and analysis of financial data. Many accounting and financial management systems offer robust reporting features.
- Employee Compensation Data: Gather information on employee compensation, benefits, and related financial data. This is essential for understanding labor costs.

By following considerations, you can systematically collect, organize, and analyze financial information to support informed decision-making and financial management. It's crucial to stay updated on changes in financial regulations and standards that may impact the collection and reporting of financial data. Additionally, consulting with financial professionals can provide valuable insights and guidance in this process.

#### 2.2. Analyzing information

Analyzing financial information is a critical step in making informed decisions, evaluating performance, and identifying areas for improvement. Here are key steps and considerations for effectively analyzing financial information:

- Understand Financial Statements: Familiarize yourself with the key components of financial statements, including the income statement, balance sheet, and cash flow statement. Understand how these statements interconnect to provide a comprehensive view of a company's financial health.
- Calculate Financial Ratios: Use financial ratios to assess various aspects of a

24   P a g e	Ministry of Labor	Apply Principles of Professional Practice to Work in	Version-1
	and Skills	the Financial Services Industry	November
	Author/Copyright		2023



company's performance. Common ratios include profitability ratios (e.g., net profit margin), liquidity ratios (e.g., current ratio), and leverage ratios (e.g., debt-to-equity ratio).

- Compare Periods: Compare financial data across different periods to identify trends and changes. Analyze year-over-year or quarter-over-quarter variations in key financial metrics.
- Benchmarking: Benchmark the company's financial performance against industry standards or competitors. This helps assess relative strengths and weaknesses and identify areas for improvement.
- Cash Flow Analysis: Examine the cash flow statement to understand the sources and uses of cash. Assess the company's ability to generate positive cash flow and meet its short-term and long-term obligations.
- Cost Analysis: Conduct a detailed cost analysis to understand the breakdown of expenses. Identify areas of high or unnecessary costs and explore opportunities for cost reduction or optimization.
- Revenue Analysis: Analyze revenue streams to identify the most profitable products, services, or customer segments. Assess the impact of pricing strategies and changes in sales volume on overall revenue.
- Profitability Analysis: Evaluate the profitability of different business segments or product lines. Identify the contribution of each segment to overall profits and allocate resources accordingly.
- Risk Assessment: Assess financial risks such as liquidity risk, credit risk, and market risk. Understand how changes in economic conditions or industry trends may affect the company's financial stability.
- Working Capital Management: Manage and analyze working capital components, including receivables, payables, and inventory. Optimize working capital to ensure efficient operations and maintain liquidity.
- Debt Analysis: Evaluate the company's debt structure and assess its ability to meet debt obligations. Monitor debt levels, interest coverage ratios, and debt maturity

25   Page	Ministry of Labor	Apply Principles of Professional Practice to Work in	Version-1
	and Skills	the Financial Services Industry	November
	Author/Copyright		2023



schedules.

- Economic Environment Analysis: Consider the broader economic environment and its potential impact on the company. Assess factors such as inflation rates, interest rates, and regulatory changes.
- Variance Analysis: Conduct variance analysis to compare actual financial results against budgeted or forecasted figures. Identify the reasons for variances and take corrective actions if necessary.
- Consult with Financial Experts: Seek input from financial analysts, accountants, or other experts who can provide additional perspectives on financial analysis and interpretation.

By systematically analyzing financial information using these steps and considerations, you can gain valuable insights into a company's financial performance, risks, and opportunities. Regular financial analysis is crucial for adapting to changing conditions, making strategic decisions, and ensuring the long-term sustainability of the organization

#### 2.3. Presenting information

Presenting financial information effectively is crucial for conveying complex data in a clear and understandable manner. Whether you're presenting to colleagues, management, investors, or other stakeholders, here are some tips for presenting financial information:

- Know Your Audience: Understand the background and expertise of your audience.

  Tailor your presentation to meet the needs and expectations of your audience, whether they are financial experts or non-experts.
- Use Clear and Concise Language: Avoid jargon and use clear, concise language.
   Explain complex financial terms in simple terms to ensure that everyone can follow your presentation.
- Visualize Data: Utilize charts, graphs, and visuals to illustrate key financial data.
   Visual representations can make complex information more accessible and facilitate better understanding.
- Choose Appropriate Charts and Graphs: Select the right type of charts or graphs for

26   P a g e	Ministry of Labor	Apply Principles of Professional Practice to Work in	Version-1
	and Skills	the Financial Services Industry	November
	Author/Copyright		2023



the data you're presenting. For example, use pie charts for percentage breakdowns and line graphs for trends over time.

- Highlight Key Metrics: Focus on key financial metrics and highlight the most important information. Avoid overwhelming your audience with excessive details.
- Use Consistent Formatting: Maintain consistent formatting throughout your presentation. This includes font styles, colors, and the layout of charts and tables.
- Executive Summary: Start with an executive summary that provides a brief overview of the key findings. This allows busy stakeholders to grasp the main points quickly.
- Financial Statements: If presenting financial statements, explain them in a step-bystep manner. Highlight key line items, changes over time, and any noteworthy trends or anomalies.
- Financial Trends: Highlight any notable financial trends or patterns. Use visual aids to emphasize changes in revenue, expenses, or other key metrics over time.
- Follow Up: Provide supporting materials and follow-up documentation for reference after the presentation. This ensures that stakeholders have access to detailed information.

By combining these tips, you can create a compelling and informative presentation of financial information that engages your audience and effectively communicates key messages. Whether you're presenting financial results, budget updates, or investment proposals, clarity and transparency are key to successful communication.

27   Page	Ministry of Labor	Apply Principles of Professional Practice to Work in	Version-1
	and Skills	the Financial Services Industry	November
	Author/Copyright		2023



#### Self check 2

#### I. True/False Questions

- 1. In financial information collection, it is essential to gather data from internal sources only, such as accounting records and financial statements.
- 2. Benchmarking involves comparing a company's financial performance against industry standards or competitors to identify areas for improvement.
- 3. Visual aids, such as charts and graphs, are effective tools for making financial information more accessible and facilitating better understanding.
- 4. Cash flow analysis involves assessing a company's ability to generate positive cash flow and meet its short-term and long-term obligations.
- 5. An executive summary is typically provided at the end of a financial presentation to summarize key findings for busy stakeholders.

#### **II. Multiple Choice Questions**

1. Which of the following is NOT a	key component of financial statements?
A) Income Statement	C) Cash Flow Statement

B) Budget Details

C) Cash Flow StatementD) Balance Sheet

- 2. What is the purpose of benchmarking in financial analysis?
- A) To compare budgeted figures with actual performance
- B) To identify areas of high or unnecessary costs
- C) To assess a company's creditworthiness
- D) To compare financial performance against industry standards or competitors
- 3. Which financial ratio measures a company's ability to cover its short-term obligations with its short-term assets?
- A) Debt-to-Equity Ratio
- B) Net Profit Margin
- C) Current Ratio
- D) Return on Equity (ROE)

28   P a g e	Ministry of Labor	Apply Principles of Professional Practice to Work in	Version-1
	and Skills	the Financial Services Industry	November
	Author/Copyright		2023



- 4. What is the main purpose of an executive summary in a financial presentation?
- A) To provide a brief overview of key findings
- B) To present detailed financial statements
- C) To compare budgeted figures with actual performance
- D) To analyze financial trends over time
- 5. Why is it important to use consistent formatting in a financial presentation?
- A) To make the presentation visually appealing
- B) To confuse the audience
- C) To maintain confidentiality of financial data
- D) To ensure clarity and professionalism

#### **III.** Short Answer Questions

- 1. Explain the significance of cash flow analysis in financial management.
- 2. Describe one key consideration when choosing appropriate charts and graphs for presenting financial data.
- 3. What role does transparency play in presenting financial information to stakeholders?

29   P a g e	Ministry of Labor	Apply Principles of Professional Practice to Work in	Version-1
	and Skills	the Financial Services Industry	November
	Author/Copyright		2023



## **Unit Three: Work team Activities**

This unit is developed to provide you the necessary information regarding the following content coverage and topics:

- Feedback to team members
- Encouraging team members
- Own contribution to work team

This guide will also assist to you to attain the learning outcomes stated in the cover page.

Specifically, upon completion of this learning guide, you will be able to:

- Provide feedback to team members
- Encourage team members
- Ensure own contribution to work team

30   P a g e	Ministry of Labor	Apply Principles of Professional Practice to Work in	Version-1
	and Skills	the Financial Services Industry	November
	Author/Copyright		2023



#### 3.1. Feedback to team members

Employee feedback is the practice of giving constructive observations and suggestions within theworkplace. Many employees think "feedback" will mean "bad news." This is a sign that managers often fall short on delivering the proper amount of positive feedback to their employees. Unfortunately, most managers only give positive feedback or praise as a cushion for the negative feedback they want to deliver.

Most commonly, the term is used to describe feedback managers give to their employees, but employees can also provide feedback to managers and the organization.

In a healthy workplace, feedback should be a natural part of the organizational culture at all levels, going in both directions.

#### **Types of Feedback**

There are three generally-accepted categories of employee feedback: praise, criticism, and constructive feedback.

- A.**Praise:** This kind of feedback is the easiest to give since it's focused on someone's successes and positive behavior. Employees will usually respond to praise with increased confidence and self-esteem at work.
- B.Criticism: Criticism is a negative opinion or judgment about an employee. It's a destructive form of feedback, and employees won't respond well to it. Avoid being critical; instead, focus on being constructive.
- C.Constructive Feedback: As a manager, you can point out your team members' mistakes without using harmful criticism. The biggest difference between the two is that criticism is judgmental, while constructive criticism focuses on the individual's actions (NOT the individual themselves).

#### 3.2. Encouraging team members

Encouraging team members is a crucial aspect of effective leadership and team management. Here are some strategies to inspire and support your team:

 Recognition and Appreciation: Acknowledge and appreciate the efforts of team members. Publicly recognize their achievements, both big and small, to boost morale and motivation.

31   P a g e	Ministry of Labor	Apply Principles of Professional Practice to Work in	Version-1
	and Skills	the Financial Services Industry	November
	Author/Copyright		2023



- Clear Communication: Provide clear and transparent communication. Keep the team informed about goals, expectations, and any changes in plans. Foster an open and inclusive communication environment.
- Set Clear Goals: Establish clear and achievable goals for the team. Clearly communicate the purpose of the tasks and how they contribute to the overall objectives of the organization.
- Celebrate Successes: Celebrate team successes and milestones. This could be through team-building activities, small rewards, or simply acknowledging the collective achievement.
- Empowerment: Encourage autonomy and empower team members to make decisions.

  Trusting your team fosters a sense of responsibility and ownership in their work.
- Provide Opportunities for Growth: Support professional development and provide opportunities for skill enhancement. This could include training programs, workshops, or mentorship initiatives.
- Create a Positive Work Environment: Foster a positive and inclusive workplace culture. Encourage collaboration, teamwork, and a sense of camaraderie among team members.
- Lead by Example: Demonstrate the qualities and work ethic you expect from your team. Leading by example sets a standard for professionalism, dedication, and commitment.
- Provide Constructive Feedback: Offer constructive and specific feedback regularly.
   Focus on both strengths and areas for improvement, and provide guidance on how team members can grow in their roles.
- Encourage Collaboration: Emphasize the value of collaboration and teamwork. Create
  opportunities for team members to work together on projects, fostering a sense of
  unity and shared achievement.
- Support Wellness Initiatives: Promote employee well-being by supporting wellness initiatives. This could include mental health programs, fitness activities, or initiatives that enhance overall health.

32   P a g e	Ministry of Labor	Apply Principles of Professional Practice to Work in	Version-1	!
	and Skills	the Financial Services Industry	November	
	Author/Copyright		2023	
				l



- Problem-Solving Together: Involve the team in problem-solving processes.
   Encourage them to contribute ideas and solutions, making them feel valued and engaged in decision-making.
- Recognize Individual Strengths: Acknowledge and leverage the unique strengths of
  each team member. Assign tasks that align with their strengths, promoting a sense of
  fulfillment and accomplishment.
- Regular Check-Ins: Conduct regular one-on-one check-ins with team members. Use these meetings to discuss their progress, address concerns, and provide personalized support.

Remember that effective encouragement is often tailored to the individual preferences and needs of team members. By fostering a positive and supportive work environment, you contribute to the overall success and satisfaction of your team.

#### 3.3. Own contribution to work team

Your contribution to a work team is multifaceted and goes beyond individual tasks. It involves collaboration, communication, leadership, and a commitment to the team's overall success. By actively participating and embodying positive qualities, you play a crucial role in creating a high-performing and cohesive team.



33   P a g e	Ministry of Labor	Apply Principles of Professional Practice to Work in	Version-1
	and Skills Author/Copyright	the Financial Services Industry	November 2023
	11001101/ 0 op J118110		2023



#### Fig.3.1. Team work

Your contribution to a work team is a critical factor in achieving collective goals and fostering a positive and productive work environment. Here are several ways you can make valuable contributions to your work team:

- Understand the end goal. Since a project has a defined ending, it is important that each contributor to the effort knows the desired end result. Stephen Covey teaches to "begin with the end in mind."
- **Identify clear roles.** Each person is an important piece in the overall project puzzle. Know your role and the roles of others.
- Collaborate. Project work is often fluid and free flowing. Once you understand your role and the roles of others you are in a position to collaborate with them more successfully. This collaboration isn't just a nice thing for you to do..
- **Recognize interdependencies.** The bigger the project, the more linked and interdependent are the people and the tasks. Certain steps need to be done before others can be completed.
- **Ask questions.** Projects can be complex. Don't be afraid to ask questions to know more about any of the things mentioned above.
- Communicate. Asking questions is communicating, but so is giving updates. Checking in with others. Co-coordinating schedules. If you are a project leader the importance of communication can't be overstated. If you are any team member other than the leader, communication is just as important.
- **Break it down.** Take the big project steps and break them down into definable tasks that you can get your hands around. By breaking the tasks down the work won't feel so daunting, you will find the interdependencies and you will be able to stay on track much more successfully
- Look at the past. If a version of this project has been done in the past, look for the lessons learned to improve your results this time. Think to about other projects you have been involved in.
- Look to the future. Take a little time to document the best practices and ideas that work

34   P a g e	Ministry of Labor	Apply Principles of Professional Practice to Work in	Version-1
	and Skills	the Financial Services Industry	November
	Author/Copyright		2023



for you during the project. Whether this is a formal task for everyone on the project, or just your own notes to help you to continuously improve, investing a little time now will make your contributions to all future projects more valuable and efficient.

35   Page	Ministry of Labor	Apply Principles of Professional Practice to Work in	Version-1
	and Skills	the Financial Services Industry	November
	Author/Copyright		2023



#### Self Check 3

#### I. True/False Questions

- 1. Praise is a form of feedback that focuses on an individual's successes and positive behavior, contributing to increased confidence and self-esteem.
- 2. Criticism is a constructive form of feedback that encourages employees to respond positively to negative opinions or judgments.
- 3. Constructive feedback differs from criticism in that it focuses on the individual's actions rather than making judgmental statements about the individual themselves.

#### **II.** Multiple Choice Questions

- 1. What is the purpose of providing clear communication in encouraging team members?
  - A) To confuse team members with complex information
  - B) To foster an open and inclusive communication environment
  - C) To hide goals and expectations from the team
  - D) To discourage collaboration among team members
- 2. Why is it important to celebrate team successes and milestones?
  - A) To create competition among team members
  - B) To acknowledge and boost morale and motivation
  - C) To downplay collective achievements
  - D) To discourage a positive work environment
- 3. What does leading by example contribute to a team?
  - A) Inefficiency and lack of commitment
  - B) A negative work culture
  - C) Setting a standard for professionalism and dedication
  - D) Fostering a sense of competition

#### **III.** Short Answer Questions

- 1. Explain the importance of collaboration in encouraging team members.
- 2. How can constructive feedback contribute to the growth of team members?
- 3. Why is recognizing individual strengths crucial for a cohesive and high-

36   P a g e	Ministry of Labor	Apply Principles of Professional Practice to Work in	Version-1
	and Skills	the Financial Services Industry	November
	Author/Copyright		2023



performing team?

# **Unit Four: Work Planning**

This unit is developed to provide you the necessary information regarding the following content coverage and topics:

- Tasks and conditions
- Preparation of work Plan
- Making contributions to organization planning process
- Adapting changes in technology and work organization

This guide will also assist to you to attain the learning outcomes stated in the cover page.

Specifically, upon completion of this learning guide, you will be able to:

- Determine tasks to be done and relevant conditions
- Plan work
- Make contributions to organization planning process
- Adapt changes in technology and work organization

37   Page	Ministry of Labor	Apply Principles of Professional Practice to Work in	Version-1
	and Skills	the Financial Services Industry	November
	Author/Copyright		2023



### 4.1. Tasks and conditions

A task is a specific activity or assignment that needs to be accomplished within a project, process, or workflow. Tasks are the individual units of work that contribute to the overall completion of a larger goal or objective. They are typically identified, planned, and assigned to individuals or teams to ensure that the work progresses efficiently and in an organized manner.

Key characteristics of tasks include:

- Specificity: Tasks are well-defined and focused on a particular activity or set of activities.
- Measurability: Tasks can be measured in terms of completion or progress, allowing for tracking and evaluation.
- Achievability: Tasks are realistic and achievable within a given timeframe and with the available resources.
- Relevance: Tasks contribute directly to the achievement of broader project objectives and goals.
- Time-Bound: Tasks are associated with specific deadlines or timelines to ensure timely completion.

Task identification is the process of clearly defining and listing the individual activities or assignments that need to be accomplished within a project or workflow. This step is crucial for effective project planning and task management. Here are key steps for task identification

- 1. Project Kickoff: Initiate the task identification process during the project kickoff. Ensure that all team members are aligned with the project objectives and scope.
- 2. Brainstorming Sessions: Conduct brainstorming sessions with the project team to generate a list of potential tasks. Encourage open communication and the sharing of diverse perspectives.
- 3. Work Breakdown Structure (WBS): Develop a Work Breakdown Structure (WBS) to visually represent the hierarchy of tasks. Break down the project into phases, deliverables, and individual tasks.

38   P a g e	Ministry of Labor	Apply Principles of Professional Practice to Work in	Version-1
	and Skills	the Financial Services Industry	November
	Author/Copyright		2023



- 4. Task Definition: Clearly define each task, outlining its purpose, objectives, and expected outcomes. Use clear and concise language to facilitate understanding.
- 5. Task Naming and Numbering: Assign unique names or numbers to each task for easy identification and reference. Consistent naming conventions help maintain clarity in communication.
- 6. Review and Validation: Review the identified tasks with the project team and relevant stakeholders. Ensure that tasks are comprehensive, well-defined, and aligned with the project's overall goals.
- 7. Feedback Incorporation: Incorporate feedback from team members and stakeholders into the task identification process. This collaborative approach enhances the quality of the task list.
- 8. Finalize Task List: Finalize the task list, including all necessary details such as deadlines, dependencies, and assigned team members. This serves as the foundation for subsequent project planning and execution.
- 9. Documentation and Communication: Document the identified tasks in a project management tool or document. Communicate the finalized task list to all team members to ensure everyone is on the same page.
- 10. Continuous Monitoring and Updates: Implement a system for continuous monitoring of tasks. Be prepared to update the task list as the project progresses and new information becomes available.

Effective task identification lays the groundwork for successful project planning and execution. It ensures that team members have a clear understanding of their responsibilities and contributes to overall project success

## 4.2. Planning work

A work plan is a detailed outline that specifies the tasks, activities, timelines, and resources required to achieve specific objectives within a project or initiative.

39   P a g e	Ministry of Labor	Apply Principles of Professional Practice to Work in	Version-1
	and Skills	the Financial Services Industry	November
	Author/Copyright		2023





Fig.4.1. Team work to prepare work plan

The preparation of a work plan is a fundamental step in project management, providing a roadmap for project implementation. Here are the key steps in preparing a work plan:

- 1. Define Project Objectives: Clearly articulate the overall objectives and goals of the project. Objectives should be specific, measurable, achievable, relevant, and time-bound (SMART).
- 2. Identify Tasks and Activities: Break down the project objectives into smaller, manageable tasks and activities. Task identification involves specifying the work that needs to be done to accomplish each objective.
- 3. Sequence Tasks: Determine the sequence or order in which tasks need to be performed. Identify any dependencies between tasks, ensuring that certain tasks are completed before others can begin.
- 4. Assign Responsibilities: Assign responsibilities for each task to specific team members. Clearly communicate roles and expectations, ensuring that each team member understands their contribution to the project.
- 5. Estimate Task Duration: Estimate the time required to complete each task. Consider factors such as complexity, resource availability, and any potential obstacles that may affect task duration.
- 6. Set Milestones: Establish milestones or key checkpoints throughout the project timeline. Milestones mark significant points of progress and help track the project's overall advancement.
- 7. Allocate Resources: Identify and allocate the necessary resources, including personnel,

40   P a g e	Ministry of Labor	Apply Principles of Professional Practice to Work in	Version-1
	and Skills	the Financial Services Industry	November
	Author/Copyright		2023



equipment, materials, and budget. Ensure that resources are available and allocated efficiently.

- 8. Develop a Timeline: Create a timeline or schedule that outlines when each task will be initiated and completed. Consider deadlines, dependencies, and the overall project timeline.
- 9. Consider Risks: Identify potential risks and challenges that may arise during the project. Develop strategies for mitigating risks and ensuring that the project remains on track.
- 10. Budgeting: Develop a budget that outlines the financial resources required for each task and the overall project. Ensure that the budget aligns with project objectives.
- 11. Communication Plan: Establish a communication plan that outlines how information will be shared among team members, stakeholders, and project managers. Clear communication is vital for successful project execution.
- 12. Review and Validation: Review the work plan with the project team and relevant stakeholders. Ensure that everyone is aligned with the plan, and incorporate feedback for improvements.
- 13. Documentation: Document the work plan, including task details, timelines, responsibilities, and any relevant notes. This documentation serves as a reference for the project team.
- 14. Regular Monitoring and Updates: Implement a system for regularly monitoring task progress against the work plan. Be prepared to update the plan as needed based on changing circumstances.
- 15. Adaptability: Acknowledge that changes may occur during the project. Be adaptable and ready to adjust the work plan to accommodate unforeseen circumstances or shifting priorities.
- 16. Finalize the Work Plan: Once all components have been considered and adjustments made, finalize the work plan. Ensure that it aligns with project objectives and is ready for implementation.

By following these steps, you can develop a comprehensive work plan that serves as a

41   P a g e	Ministry of Labor	Apply Principles of Professional Practice to Work in	Version-1
	and Skills	the Financial Services Industry	November
	Author/Copyright		2023



guiding document for successful project execution. A well-prepared work plan enhances coordination, facilitates communication, and contributes to the overall success of the project.

Table 4.1. sample work plan

Activity	Responsibility	Budget	Time/Estimated
			Completion Date
Identify schools for possible	Project officer	xx \$	1 month/01.01.2020
cooperation in the district	-		
Outreach to the schools in the			
District	Project officer	xx \$	1 month/01.02.2020
Organize teacher training in			
cooperation with the concerned	Project coordinator	xx \$	6 weeks/15.03.2020
government office	J		
Implement teacher training in	Project coordinator and		
the selected schools	project officer	xx \$	1 month/15.04.2020
Evaluation of the training	External consultant	xx \$	2 weeks/01.05.2020
Results			

### 4.3. Making contributions to organization planning process

Making contributions to the organizational planning process involves actively participating in the development and implementation of plans that guide the activities and direction of the organization. Here are some ways in which individuals can contribute to the organizational planning process:

- Strategic Input: Provide insights and perspectives on the organization's strategic goals and objectives. Contribute ideas that align with the long-term vision and mission of the organization.
- Environmental Scanning: Stay informed about external factors that may impact

42   P a g e	Ministry of Labor	Apply Principles of Professional Practice to Work in	Version-1
	and Skills	the Financial Services Industry	November
	Author/Copyright		2023



the organization, such as market trends, industry changes, and regulatory developments. Share relevant information to help the organization anticipate challenges and opportunities.

- SWOT Analysis: Contribute to the analysis of the organization's strengths, weaknesses, opportunities, and threats (SWOT). Offer valuable input based on your expertise and knowledge of the internal and external environment.
- Goal Setting: Participate in setting SMART (Specific, Measurable, Achievable, Relevant, Time-bound) goals for different departments or teams. Ensure that goals are realistic and contribute to the overall strategic objectives.
- Resource Allocation: Provide input on the allocation of resources, including budgetary considerations and manpower. Advocate for resource allocation that supports the achievement of organizational goals.
- Risk Management: Contribute to the identification and assessment of risks that could impact the success of organizational plans. Suggest strategies for mitigating risks and ensuring resilience.
- Collaborative Decision-Making: Engage in collaborative decision-making processes. Contribute to discussions, offer constructive feedback, and support decisions that are in the best interest of the organization.
- Continuous Improvement: Advocate for a culture of continuous improvement.
   Suggest ways to enhance processes, streamline operations, and increase efficiency to support organizational goals.
- Communication: Effectively communicate with colleagues and leadership. Share information, ideas, and concerns in a transparent manner, fostering open communication channels within the organization.
- Monitoring and Evaluation: Contribute to the development of key performance indicators (KPIs) and metrics to measure the success of organizational plans.
   Participate in regular reviews and evaluations to assess progress.
- Employee Engagement: Encourage employee involvement in the planning process. Seek input from diverse teams and departments to ensure a holistic

43   P a g e	Ministry of Labor	Apply Principles of Professional Practice to Work in	Version-1	
	and Skills	the Financial Services Industry	November	
	Author/Copyright		2023	
				ĺ



perspective and commitment to the plans.

- Adaptability: Recognize the dynamic nature of the business environment.
   Contribute ideas for adapting plans in response to changes in the internal or external landscape.
- Technology Integration: Explore opportunities for leveraging technology to enhance organizational planning and execution. Propose digital solutions that can improve efficiency and effectiveness.

By actively participating in these ways, individuals can contribute meaningfully to the organizational planning process, fostering a collaborative and strategic approach to achieving the organization's goals and objectives.

## 4.4. Changes in technology and work organization

Adapting to changes in technology and work organization is crucial for individuals and organizations to stay competitive and efficient in today's dynamic business environment. Here are key strategies to navigate and embrace these changes:

### A. Continuous Learning and Training

- Stay updated on the latest technological advancements relevant to your industry.
- Engage in ongoing training programs to acquire new skills and enhance existing ones.
- Embrace a culture of continuous learning to adapt to evolving work requirements.

#### B. Flexibility and Adaptability

- Develop a mindset of flexibility and adaptability to respond effectively to changes.
- Embrace new work structures, processes, and technologies with an open mind.
- Be willing to step out of your comfort zone and learn new ways of working.

### C. Collaboration Tools and Communication

• Familiarize yourself with collaborative tools and platforms that facilitate remote work and communication.

44   P a g e	Ministry of Labor	Apply Principles of Professional Practice to Work in	Version-1
	and Skills	the Financial Services Industry	November
	Author/Copyright		2023



- Utilize project management and collaboration tools to streamline teamwork and information sharing.
- Master effective communication skills in both traditional and digital channels.

#### D. Remote Work Skills

- Develop skills conducive to remote work, including time management and selfdiscipline.
- Enhance your ability to collaborate with colleagues across different time zones and locations.
- Leverage digital communication tools for virtual meetings and collaboration.

#### E. Data Literacy

- Improve your data literacy skills to understand and interpret data relevant to your role.
- Familiarize yourself with data analytics tools and techniques.
- Use data-driven insights to make informed decisions and contribute to organizational goals.

### F. Cybersecurity Awareness

- Stay informed about cybersecurity best practices and threats.
- Adhere to security protocols to protect sensitive information.
- Report any security concerns promptly to ensure a secure work environment.

### G. Remote Leadership Skills

- If in a leadership role, develop skills for leading remote teams effectively.
- Foster a sense of connection and engagement among team members.
- Implement strategies to maintain team cohesion and productivity in a virtual setting.

### H. Agile Work Practices:

- Embrace agile work methodologies to enhance adaptability.
- Break down projects into smaller, manageable tasks with iterative feedback loops.
- Respond quickly to changes in project requirements or business priorities.

45   P a g e	Ministry of Labor	Apply Principles of Professional Practice to Work in	Version-1
	and Skills	the Financial Services Industry	November
	Author/Copyright		2023



### I. Digital Transformation Advocacy

- Advocate for digital transformation initiatives within your organization.
- Contribute ideas on how technology can improve efficiency and innovation.
- Collaborate with IT teams to implement technology-driven solutions.

#### J. Cross-Functional Collaboration

- Foster collaboration between different departments and teams.
- Break down silos to encourage the free flow of information and ideas.
- Seek opportunities for interdisciplinary projects and knowledge sharing.

#### K. Wellness and Work-Life Balance:

- Prioritize wellness and work-life balance in the digital work environment.
- Set boundaries for work hours and breaks to prevent burnout.
- Encourage a culture that values employee well-being.

### L. Networking and Community Engagement

- Participate in professional networks and communities related to your field.
- Share experiences and learn from others facing similar technological and organizational challenges.
- Attend conferences, webinars, and industry events to stay connected and informed.

By adopting these strategies, individuals can proactively navigate changes in technology and work organization, contributing to personal and organizational success in an ever evolving landscape.

46   P a g e	Ministry of Labor	Apply Principles of Professional Practice to Work in	Version-1	!
	and Skills	the Financial Services Industry	November	!
	Author/Copyright		2023	
				l



## Self check 4

### i. True/False Questions

- 1. Tasks are individual units of work that contribute to the completion of larger goals or objectives.
- 2. Measurability in tasks refers to their flexibility and adaptability to changing circumstances.
- 3. Work Breakdown Structure (WBS) is a visual representation that outlines the hierarchy of tasks in a project.
- 4. In task identification, assigning unique names or numbers to tasks is not necessary for clarity in communication.
- 5. Flexibility is not an essential characteristic of well-defined tasks in project management.
- 6. The SWOT analysis involves assessing the organization's strengths, weaknesses, opportunities, and threats.
- 7. In project management, milestones are not crucial for tracking the overall progress of a project.

### ii. Multiple Choice Questions

- 1. Which step in preparing a work plan involves determining the sequence or order of tasks?
- A. Define Project Objectives
- B. Identify Tasks and Activities
- C. Sequence Tasks
- D. Develop a Timeline
- 2. What is the purpose of a Work Breakdown Structure (WBS)?
- A. To assign responsibilities
- B. To define project objectives
- C. To visually represent the hierarchy of tasks
- D. To allocate resources
- 3. What is a key consideration in making contributions to the organizational planning process?

47   P a g e	Ministry of Labor	Apply Principles of Professional Practice to Work in	Version-1
	and Skills Author/Copyright	the Financial Services Industry	November 2023



- A. Isolation from external factors
- B. Resistance to change
- C. Collaborative decision-making
- D. Lack of communication
- 4. What is a crucial strategy for adapting to changes in technology and work organization?
- A. Resistance to new work structures
- B. Lack of continuous learning
- C. Embracing a culture of flexibility
- D. Avoiding collaboration tools
- 5. Which skill is important for remote work in the digital era?
- A. Traditional communication
- B. Data illiteracy
- C. Lack of adaptability
- D. Limited use of collaboration tools

### iii. Short Answer Questions

- 1. Explain the significance of milestones in a project timeline.
- 2. How can individuals contribute to risk management in the organizational planning process?
- 3. Describe the role of a Work Breakdown Structure (WBS) in project management.
- 4. Provide three strategies for continuous learning in the context of changes in technology and work organization.

48   P a g e	Ministry of Labor	Apply Principles of Professional Practice to Work in	Version-1
	and Skills Author/Copyright	the Financial Services Industry	November 2023



# **Unit Five: Personal competency Development**

This unit is developed to provide you the necessary information regarding the following content coverage and topics:

- Professional development needs and goals
- Competency, authorization and licensing requirements
- Professional development opportunities

This guide will also assist to you to attain the learning outcomes stated in the cover page.

Specifically, upon completion of this learning guide, you will be able to:

- Identifying and reviewing professional development needs and goals
- Clarifying and complying competency, authorization and licensing requirements
- Seeking and completing professional development opportunities

49   P a g e	Ministry of Labor	Apply Principles of Professional Practice to Work in	Version-1
	and Skills Author/Copyright	the Financial Services Industry	November 2023



## 5.1. Professional development needs and goals

Professional development needs and goals refer to the areas in which an individual seeks improvement and growth to enhance their skills, knowledge, and capabilities in their professional career. Establishing and working towards professional development needs and goals is a proactive approach to continuous learning and career advancement. Here's a guide on identifying and setting professional development needs and goals:

### **Identifying Professional Development Needs**

- Self-Assessment: Reflect on your current skills, strengths, and weaknesses. Identify areas where you feel less confident or where you want to improve.
- Performance Reviews: Review feedback from performance evaluations. Identify any areas for improvement that have been highlighted by supervisors or colleagues.
- Industry Trends: Stay informed about trends, advancements, and changes in your industry. Identify skills or knowledge areas that are becoming increasingly important.
- Skill Gaps: Identify specific skills that are in demand within your profession.

  Assess whether you possess those skills or if there are gaps that need to be filled.
- Peer Feedback: Seek input from colleagues or peers about areas where they think you could improve. External perspectives can provide valuable insights.
- Career Aspirations: Consider your long-term career goals. Identify the skills and knowledge that will be crucial for achieving those goals.
- Organizational Needs: Understand the skills and competencies that are valued within your organization. Align your professional development needs with organizational goals.

### **Setting Professional Development Goals**

- Specificity: Make your goals specific and measurable. Instead of a vague goal like "improve communication skills," specify "enhance public speaking abilities through a training course."
- Relevance: Ensure that your goals align with your overall career objectives. Focus on areas that will contribute directly to your professional growth.
- Achievability: Set realistic goals that you can achieve within a defined timeframe.

50   P a g e	Ministry of Labor	Apply Principles of Professional Practice to Work in	Version-1
	and Skills Author/Copyright	the Financial Services Industry	November 2023



Break larger goals into smaller, manageable steps.

- Time-Bound: Assign deadlines to your goals. This helps create a sense of urgency and provides a timeframe for tracking progress.
- Prioritization: Prioritize your goals based on their importance and impact on your career. Focus on addressing high-priority needs first.
- Continuous Learning: Embrace a mindset of continuous learning. Set goals that
  encourage ongoing development rather than viewing professional growth as a onetime task.
- Feedback Mechanism: Establish a system for receiving feedback on your progress. Regularly assess how well you are meeting your professional development goals.
- Flexibility: Be open to adjusting your goals as circumstances change. Adaptability is crucial for responding to evolving career demands.

### **Examples of Professional Development Goals**

- Complete a Relevant Certification: Obtain a certification that enhances your expertise in a specific area relevant to your profession.
- Attend Workshops or Conferences: Participate in industry conferences or workshops to stay updated on the latest trends and best practices.
- Improve Leadership Skills: Take on leadership roles or enroll in leadership development programs to enhance your management skills.
- Enhance Technical Proficiency: Learn new technical skills or deepen your proficiency in existing ones to stay competitive in your field.
- Develop Soft Skills: Focus on improving soft skills such as communication, teamwork, and problem-solving, which are crucial in professional settings.
- Project Management Skills: Develop project management skills to effectively plan, execute, and monitor projects in your role.

Remember that professional development is a continuous and evolving process. Regularly reassess your needs and goals, and be proactive in seeking opportunities for growth. Regularly updating your professional development plan ensures that it remains relevant to your career aspirations.

51   Page	Ministry of Labor	Apply Principles of Professional Practice to Work in	Version-1
	and Skills Author/Copyright	the Financial Services Industry	November 2023



## 5.2. Competency, authorization and licensing requirements

Clarifying and complying with competency, authorization, and licensing requirements is crucial in various professions and industries to ensure that individuals have the necessary qualifications, skills, and legal permissions to perform specific roles or tasks. Here are the key aspects to consider in this process:

### **Understanding Competency Requirements**

- Job Roles and Responsibilities: Clearly define the roles and responsibilities associated with specific positions or professions. Identify the required competencies and skills for each role.
- Industry Standards: Familiarize yourself with industry standards and best practices. Industry-specific organizations and associations often provide guidelines for required competencies.
- Skills Assessment: Conduct skills assessments to evaluate the current competency levels of individuals. Identify any gaps between existing skills and the required competencies.
- Training and Development: Develop training programs to address competency gaps. Provide opportunities for professional development and continuous learning to enhance skills.

### **Understanding Authorization Requirements**

- Legal and Regulatory Compliance: Research and understand the legal and regulatory requirements governing specific roles or professions. Compliance with laws and regulations is essential for authorization.
- Organizational Policies: Review and communicate organizational policies related to authorization. Ensure that employees are aware of and adhere to these policies.
- Background Checks: Conduct background checks as needed to verify individuals'
  qualifications and suitability for specific roles. This may include educational,
  professional, or criminal background checks.
- Authorization Criteria: Clearly define the criteria for authorization within the

52   P a g e	Ministry of Labor	Apply Principles of Professional Practice to Work in	Version-1
	and Skills Author/Copyright	the Financial Services Industry	November 2023



organization. This may include education, experience, certifications, and other factors.

### **Understanding Licensing Requirements**

- Licensing Boards and Authorities: Identify the relevant licensing boards or authorities governing specific professions. Understand the licensing requirements and procedures established by these entities.
- License Application Process: Clearly communicate the process for applying for and obtaining licenses. Provide guidance to individuals on the necessary documentation and steps involved.
- Renewal and Compliance: Understand the requirements for license renewal and ensure ongoing compliance. This may involve completing continuing education credits or meeting other criteria.
- Cross-Border Considerations: If applicable, consider licensing requirements across different jurisdictions or countries. Some professions may require recognition or endorsement of qualifications in different regions.

## **5.3.** Professional development opportunities

Professional development opportunities are essential for individuals seeking to enhance their skills, knowledge, and capabilities in their respective fields. These opportunities can contribute to career growth, increased job satisfaction, and improved job performance. Here are various types of professional development opportunities:

#### A. Formal Education Programs:

- Degree Programs: Pursuing advanced degrees such as master's or doctoral programs related to your field.
- Certification Programs: Enrolling in certification programs to gain specialized skills and credentials.
- Short Courses and Workshops: Attending short courses, workshops, or seminars focused on specific topics or skills.

### B. Training and Workshops:

• Company-Sponsored Training: Participating in training sessions organized by your employer to enhance job-specific skills.

53   P a g e	Ministry of Labor	Apply Principles of Professional Practice to Work in	Version-1
	and Skills Author/Copyright	the Financial Services Industry	November 2023



- Industry Conferences: Attending conferences in your industry to learn about the latest trends, technologies, and best practices.
- Vendor Training Programs: Participating in training programs offered by vendors related to specific tools or technologies.

### C. Online Learning Platforms:

- eLearning Courses: Accessing online courses on platforms like Coursera, edX,
   LinkedIn Learning, or Udemy.
- Webinars: Participating in webinars and virtual workshops on various professional development topics.
- Podcasts and Blogs: Listening to podcasts and reading blogs to stay informed about industry trends and insights.

### D. Professional Memberships and Associations:

- Membership Benefits: Joining professional associations that offer networking opportunities, conferences, and resources.
- Conferences and Events: Attending events organized by professional associations to connect with industry experts.

#### E. Networking Opportunities:

- Networking Events: Participating in networking events within your industry or organization.
- Mentorship Programs: Engaging in mentorship programs to receive guidance and advice from experienced professionals.

### F. On-the-Job Learning:

- Stretch Assignments: Taking on challenging assignments or projects to gain new skills and experiences.
- Cross-Training: Exploring opportunities to learn about different aspects of your organization or industry.

### G. Soft Skills Development:

- Communication Workshops: Participating in workshops to improve communication and interpersonal skills.
- Leadership Development Programs: Joining programs focused on developing

54   P a g	g e Ministry of Labor	Apply Principles of Professional Practice to Work in	Version-1
	and Skills Author/Copyright	the Financial Services Industry	November 2023



leadership qualities and skills.

### H. Language and Communication Skills:

- Language Courses: Taking language courses to improve communication skills, especially in a global context.
- Public Speaking Training: Participating in public speaking courses to enhance presentation and communication skills.

### I. Technology Skills Development:

- Coding Bootcamps: Enrolling in coding bootcamps to acquire programming and coding skills.
- Digital Marketing Courses: Taking courses in digital marketing to stay current with online marketing trends.

### J. Financial Literacy and Business Skills:

- Finance Courses: Enrolling in courses to improve financial literacy and understanding of business operations.
- Business Strategy Seminars: Attending seminars on business strategy and planning.

### K. Entrepreneurship and Innovation:

- Innovation Workshops: Attending workshops on innovation and creative thinking.
- Entrepreneurship Programs: Participating in programs that foster an entrepreneurial mindset.

### L. Project Management Training:

- Project Management Courses: Enrolling in courses to enhance project management skills.
- Agile and Scrum Training: Participating in training programs focused on agile methodologies and Scrum.

55   P a g e	Ministry of Labor	Apply Principles of Professional Practice to Work in	Version-1
	and Skills Author/Copyright	the Financial Services Industry	November 2023



## Self check 5

### I. True/False Questions

- Praise is a form of feedback that focuses on someone's successes and positive behavior.
- 2. Clarifying and complying with competency, authorization, and licensing requirements is essential for ensuring individuals have the necessary qualifications and legal permissions.
- Formal education programs include attending industry conferences and workshops.
- 4. Professional development goals should be vague to allow flexibility in achieving them.

### **II. Multiple Choice Questions:**

- 1. What is one way to identify professional development needs?
- A. Completing a relevant certification
- B. Attending networking events
- C. Ignoring feedback from peers
- D. Avoiding self-assessment
- 2. Which aspect is crucial for authorization in a professional context?
- A. Completing background checks
- B. Pursuing entrepreneurship programs
- C. Ignoring organizational policies
- D. Avoiding skills assessments
- 3. What is a recommended strategy for encouraging team members?
- A. Withholding recognition and appreciation
- B. Setting unclear goals
- C. Demonstrating a lack of leadership
- D. Acknowledging and appreciating their efforts
- 4. Which professional development opportunity falls under the category of on-the-job learning?
- A. Attending industry conferences

56   P a g e	Ministry of Labor	Apply Principles of Professional Practice to Work in	Version-1
	and Skills Author/Copyright	the Financial Services Industry	November 2023



- B. Enrolling in coding bootcamps
- C. Taking language courses
- D. Undertaking challenging assignments

## **III. Short Answer Questions**

- 1. Explain one method for identifying competency requirements in a professional setting.
- 2. Provide an example of a specific and measurable professional development goal.
- 3. What is the importance of setting deadlines for professional development goals?

Γ	57   P a g e	Ministry of Labor	Apply Principles of Professional Practice to Work in	Version-1
		and Skills Author/Copyright	the Financial Services Industry	November 2023



### REFERENCES

Forsey, C. (2021). How to Practice Ethical Decision Making at Work.

Galiana, D. (2020). How to work as a team and facilitate collaboration.

Hinojosa, J. (2004). Developing Personal Professional Competencies.

Anderson, J. (2022). Information Management Best Practices.

Horton, M. (2023). Different Types of Financial Institutions.

Asfaw, M. (2014). Financial Regulation and Supervision in Ethiopia.

Project Pro. (2023). The Data Analysis Process | Lifecycle Of a Data Analytics project.

UMass Global. (n.d.). In-Demand Professional Development Opportunities. Retrieved

from <a href="https://www.umassglobal.edu/news-and-events/blog/in-demand-professional-development-opportunities">https://www.umassglobal.edu/news-and-events/blog/in-demand-professional-development-opportunities</a>

Output Messenger. (n.d.). Tips to Encourage Team Work. Retrieved from <a href="https://www.outputmessenger.com/tips-to-encourage-team-work/">https://www.outputmessenger.com/tips-to-encourage-team-work/</a>

Bailey and French. (2020, February). Everyone Has a Role to Play: Unique Contribution to Team. Retrieved from <a href="https://www.baileyandfrench.com/2020/02/everyone-has-a-role-to-play-unique-contribution-tea">https://www.baileyandfrench.com/2020/02/everyone-has-a-role-to-play-unique-contribution-tea</a>

Project Smart. (n.d.). Nine Ways to Contribute to Project Team Success. Retrieved from <a href="https://www.projectsmart.co.uk/team-building/nine-ways-to-contribute-to-project-team-success.php">https://www.projectsmart.co.uk/team-building/nine-ways-to-contribute-to-project-team-success.php</a>

58   P a g e	Ministry of Labor	Apply Principles of Professional Practice to Work in	Version-1
	and Skills Author/Copyright	the Financial Services Industry	November 2023



# **Developers profile**

No	Name	Qualification	Educational	Region	College	Mobile	E-mail
			background			number	
1	Kassa Terefe Gelaw	MA	Accounting &	A.A.	Kirkos Manufacturing	0993298301	kssterefe@gmail.co
			Finance		College		m
2	Remedan	MBA	Accounting &	A. A.	GENERAL WINGET	0933233939	Rame.abdu10@gmai
	Abdurehman		Finance		PTC		1.com
3	Sewumehon Anteneh	MSC	Accounting &	A. A	Kirkos Manufacturing	0948032126	sewumehonanteneh
			Finance		College		@gmail.com
4	Aynabeba Zewdie	MA	Accounting	Oromya	Sebeta Polytechnic	0911724881	Aynabebazewdie81
			&Finance		College		@gmail.com
5	Ejigu Terefe	MA	Accounting	Oromya	Burayu PTC	0913440478	kenaketejigu@gmail
			&Finance				.com

59   P a g e	Ministry of Labor	Apply Principles of Professional Practice to Work in	Version-1
	and Skills Author/Copyright	the Financial Services Industry	November 2023